
Administration 
301 South Center Street 

P.O. Box 2151, Reno, Nevada 89505 
(775) 327-8341 

www.washoecountylibrary.us 

LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, MAY 16, 2018 

4:00 P.M. 

Downtown Reno Library 
301 S. Center Street 

Reno, NV 89501 

PURSUANT TO NRS 241.020, THE AGENDA FOR THE TRUSTEES MEETING HAS BEEN POSTED AT THE FOLLOWING 
LOCATIONS:  WASHOE COUNTY COURTHOUSE, WASHOE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, DOWNTOWN RENO 
LIBRARY, INCLINE VILLAGE LIBRARY, NORTH VALLEYS LIBRARY, NORTHWEST RENO LIBRARY, SIERRA VIEW LIBRARY, 
SOUTH VALLEYS LIBRARY, SPANISH SPRINGS LIBRARY AND SPARKS LIBRARY.  FURTHER, IN COMPLIANCE WITH NRS 
241.010, THIS NOTICE HAS BEEN POSTED ON THE OFFICIAL WEB SITE FOR THE WASHOE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
AT www.washoecountylibrary.us; and https://notice.nv.gov.

SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA PROVIDED TO THE LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES IS AVAILABLE 
TO MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AT THE DOWNTOWN RENO LIBRARY ADMINISTRATION OFFICE, 301 SOUTH CENTER STREET, 
RENO, NEVADA AND MAY BE OBTAINED BY CONTACTING TAMI GASTON AT 327-8343 OR tgaston@washoecounty.us.  WE 
ARE PLEASED TO MAKE REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHO ARE DISABLED AND WISH 
TO ATTEND MEETINGS.  IF YOU SHOULD REQUIRE SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS FOR ANY TRUSTEE MEETING, PLEASE 
CONTACT OUR OFFICE AT 327-8341 24 HOURS PRIOR TO THE DATE OF THE MEETING. 

THE LIBRARY BOARD CAN DELIBERATE OR TAKE ACTION ONLY IF A MATTER HAS BEEN LISTED ON AN AGENDA PROPERLY 
POSTED PRIOR TO THE MEETING.  DURING THE PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD, SPEAKERS MAY ADDRESS MATTERS LISTED OR 
NOT LISTED ON THE PUBLISHED AGENDA.  THE OPEN MEETING LAW DOES NOT EXPRESSLY PROHIBIT RESPONSES TO 
PUBLIC COMMENTS BY THE BOARD.  HOWEVER, RESPONSES FROM TRUSTEES TO UNLISTED PUBLIC COMMENT TOPICS 
COULD BECOME DELIBERATION ON A MATTER WITHOUT NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC.  ON THE ADVICE OF LEGAL COUNSEL 
AND TO ENSURE THE PUBLIC HAS NOTICE OF ALL MATTERS THE TRUSTEES WILL CONSIDER, TRUSTEES MAY CHOOSE NOT 
TO RESPOND TO PUBLIC COMMENTS, EXCEPT TO CORRECT FACTUAL INACCURACIES, ASK FOR LIBRARY STAFF ACTION OR 
TO ASK THAT A MATTER BE LISTED ON A FUTURE AGENDA.  THE BOARD MAY DO THIS EITHER DURING THE PUBLIC 
COMMENT ITEM OR DURING THE FOLLOWING ITEM:  “BOARD COMMENT – LIMITED TO ANNOUNCEMENTS, STRATEGIC 
PLAN ACTIVITY UPDATES OR ISSUES PROPOSED FOR FUTURE AGENDAS AND/OR WORKSHOPS.” 

THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES CONDUCTS THE BUSINESS OF THE WASHOE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM DURING ITS 
MEETINGS.  THE PRESIDING OFFICER MAY ORDER THE REMOVAL OF ANY PERSON WHOSE STATEMENT OR OTHER 
CONDUCT DISRUPTS THE ORDERLY, EFFICIENT OR SAFE CONDUCT OF THE MEETING.  WARNINGS AGAINST DISRUPTIVE 
COMMENTS OR BEHAVIOR MAY OR MAY NOT BE GIVEN PRIOR TO REMOVAL.  THE VIEWPOINT OF A SPEAKER WILL NOT 
BE RESTRICTED, BUT REASONABLE RESTRICTIONS MAY BE IMPOSED UPON THE TIME, PLACE AND MANNER OF SPEECH.  
IRRELEVANT AND UNDULY REPETITIOUS STATEMENTS AND PERSONAL ATTACKS WHICH ANTAGONIZE OR INCITE OTHERS 
ARE EXAMPLES OF SPEECH THAT MAY BE REASONABLY LIMITED.  

THE LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MAY TAKE AGENDA ITEMS OUT OF ORDER, CONSIDER TWO OR MORE ITEMS IN 
COMBINATION, REMOVE ONE OR MORE ITEMS FROM THE AGENDA OR DELAY DISCUSSION ON AN ITEM.  

http://www.washoecountylibrary.us/
mailto:tgaston@washoecounty.us


The Board of Trustees may take action only on the items below that are preceded by the words 
“For Possible Action.” The Board will not take action on any other items. 
 
1) Roll Call  

2) Public Comment – Three Minute Time Limit Per Person  
No discussion or action may be taken upon any matter raised under this public comment section 
until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda. 

 
3) Approval of Meeting Minutes 

a. For Possible Action:  Approval of Minutes from the Library Board Meeting of April 18, 2018 
 

4) Old Business  
a. For Possible Action:  Washoe County Staff Report, Review and Possible Approval of the 

Library Director’s Annual Performance Evaluation for the period 2017 to May 2018, and 
Possible Direction Regarding Future Performance of the Library Director 

b. Informational:  Washoe County Staff Report Regarding Radon Test Results and Current 
Mitigation  Effort at the Downtown Reno Library 

 
5) New Business   

None 
 

6) Reports 
a. Sparks Library Report on Programs, Activities and Operations 
b. Tacchino Trust Expenditure Update 
 

7) Staff Announcements - Three Minute Time Limit Per Person 
No discussion or action may be taken upon any matter raised under this comment section until 
the matter has been specifically included on an agenda 

 
8) Public Comment – Three Minute Time Limit Per Person  

No discussion or action may be taken upon any matter raised under this public comment section 
until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda 

 
9) Board Comment – Limited to Announcements or Issues Proposed for Future Agendas and/or 

Workshops - No discussion or action may be taken upon any matter raised under this comment 
section until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda 
 

10) Adjournment 



  ITEM 3a 

1 Library Board of Trustee Meeting 4/18/18 
 

LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 18, 2018 

 
The Board met in regular session at the Sparks Reno Library, 1125 12th Street, Sparks, NV 
89431 

 
Vice Chair Marsh called the meeting at 4:00 pm.   
 
 
1) ROLL CALL  

Board Members Present:   Zanny Marsh,  Jean Stoess, Derek Wilson 
 
County Staff Present:  Assistant District Attorney Dania Reid, Assistant County Manager 

Dave Solaro 
 
Public Present:   Heidi Wilson, Secondhand Prose Chairman Sheryl Stopper (Friends 

of Washoe County Library), Scottie Wallace 
 

2) PUBLIC COMMENT  

None 
 

3) APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
a.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE LIBRARY BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 21, 2018 

On motion by Trustee Wilson, seconded by Trustee Stoess, motion which duly carried, the 
Board approved the meeting minutes from the Library Board of Trustee meeting of March 
21, 2018.  All in favor, none opposed. 

 
4) OLD BUSINESS  

a. DISTRIBUTION OF MATERIALS RECEIVED BY FRIENDS LIAISON TRUSTEE STOESS FROM 
FRIENDS OF WASHOE COUNTY LIBRARY (FWCL) INCLUDING CURRENT FWCL BOARD 
INFORMATION, ORGANIZATIONAL HISTORY, AND FRIENDS’ INVESTMENT GUIDELINES 
AND SPENDING POLICY, AS DISCUSSED DURING THE LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEE 
WORKSHOP MEETING ON FEBRUARY 28, 2018 

Trustee Stoess stated the information provided was received from Friends of Washoe 
County Library (FWCL) and that FWCL Treasurer Keith Judson was willing to discuss 
concerns at a future meeting if the Board decides to agendize any items from it.   

 
Legal Counsel Dania Reid suggested that the Trustees review the material provided and 
contact either Board Secretary Tami Gaston or Chair Wendy Alderman to agendize any 
specific items they would like to discuss at a future meeting, providing specific item of 
interest and location within the provided packet. 

 
5) NEW BUSINESS   

a. ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF DONATIONS MADE DURING THE THIRD QUARTER OF FISCAL 
YEAR 2017-2018 

Trustee Wilson noted that there were a lot of Library staff names under donations and 
appreciates their support as well.   



  ITEM 3a 

2 Library Board of Trustee Meeting 4/18/18 
 

 
On motion by Trustee Wilson, seconded by Trustee Stoess, motion which duly carried, the 
Board approved acknowledgement of donations during the third quarter of the fiscal year.  
All in favor, none opposed.   

 
b. APPROVAL OF REVISED MEETING ROOM POLICY REMOVING RESERVATION FEE OF $20 

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2019 

Vice Chair Marsh noted this agenda item will be moved to another meeting due to action 
verbiage having been dropped from the posted agenda.  This agenda item will be included 
in the May Board Meeting.  
 

6) REPORTS 
a. LIBRARY DIRECTOR’S PRESENTATION TO INCLUDE SYSTEM PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES, 

AND FRIENDS REPORT FOR MARCH 2018    

Director Scott provided a PowerPoint presentation updating the Board on Library System 
programs and activities, outreach and operations for the month of March 2018. 

 
b. TACCHINO TRUST UPDATE 

The Board reviewed the information submitted in the packet.  
 
Director Scott noted that expenditures for the month of March included furniture, 
children’s materials and a payment to Gustin & Associates that was approved by the Board 
last month.   

 
7) STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS  

Director Scott stated that Washoe County has been testing their facilities for Radon and the 
Downtown Reno Library came back with elevated Radon levels in the building.  At this time the 
County is in the information gathering stage in the testing process and there will be a 
presentation to library staff tomorrow by the County to talk about the Radon levels and what is 
going on with that.  Radon is a naturally occurring gas that seeps up from the ground and can 
lead to cancer after prolonged exposure.  The Library will be running the HVAC 24 hours a 
day/7 days a week and moving staff who work at the lowest levels in the building to higher 
floors as additional caution.  The levels will be retested in the next week and we will determine 
where to go from there.   
 
Systems and Access Librarian Nancy Keener, informed the Board that the Monthly Technology 
Report had been passed out prior to the meeting but was not on the agenda for discussion.  
She recommended the Trustees either email her with questions or she was prepared to answer 
any questions at the next meeting. 
 
Development Officer and PIO Andrea Tavener showed off the new aprons purchased for staff 
use at community outreaches as well as the bags, which will sell for $2.00 each, and water 
bottles provided to the Trustees and Presidential Volunteer Awardees prior to the Library 
Board meeting.  She also publically acknowledged and thanked FWCL for funding the purchase 
of the noted items. 
 
 
 



  ITEM 3a 

3 Library Board of Trustee Meeting 4/18/18 
 

8) PUBLIC COMMENT  

Assistant County Manager Dave Solaro from the Washoe County Managers Office followed up 
with more information regarding Radon levels, stating that the County is not taking this 
situation lightly for Library staff, patrons and Board members.  He noted that pertinent County 
departments are aware of the situation including Human Resources and Risk Management.   He 
advised that Washoe County Employee’s Association (WCEA) has also been informed of the 
issue.  He reiterated Director Scott’s information regarding the 24/7 running of the HVAC 
system and subsequent testing, gathering of results and creation of a plan to move forward.   
He also noted that, as far as he knows, Washoe County is the only agency he is aware of that is 
testing commercial buildings and that the County has had a successful mitigation of Radon in 
another County building in recent years.   He stated that the County will keep all employees 
and the Library Board up to date as information emerges.  Additionally, Assistant County 
Manager Solaro urges all employees contact UNR Cooperative Extension for a test kit or 
purchase one at a local hardware store to test the Radon levels in their homes due to the 
amount of time people spend at home.  
 

9) BOARD COMMENT  

Trustee Wilson reminded the Board and public that they have not forgotten to return the 
Library Director’s evaluation to a future Board Agenda.   
 
Vice Chair Marsh noted that the Library Director’s evaluation is expected to return on the May 
2018 Board Meeting agenda. 
 

10) ADJOURNMENT 

Vice Chair Marsh adjourned the meeting at 4:21 pm. 



ITEM 4a 
 

 
TO:  Washoe County Library Board 

FROM:  Washoe County Staff Report 

RE: Washoe County Staff Report, Review and Possible Approval of the Library 
Director’s Annual Performance Evaluation for the period 2017 to May 
2018, and Possible Direction Regarding Future Performance of the Library 
Director 

DATE:  May 16, 2018 

 
Summary:  The Washoe County Library Board of Trustees conducts an annual 
performance evaluation of the Washoe County Library Director as near as possible to the 
anniversary/evaluation date of December 14, and provides direction regarding the 
future performance of the Library Director.  The Library Board of Trustees receives a 
Washoe County staff report, reviews and discusses the performance evaluation 
information and the previous year’s goals and accomplishments.  The Library Board of 
Trustees either approves and accepts the performance evaluation results as is, or asks 
the Library Director clarifying questions.  Upon completion of the performance 
evaluation review, the Library Board of Trustees votes to accept the performance 
evaluation as presented, or as adjusted by the board; adjustments are noted in the 
record.  Upon approval and acceptance of the performance evaluation, the Library Board 
of Trustees discusses possible goals for the coming year and provides direction regarding 
future performance to the Library Director. 
 
Upon approval by the Library Board of Trustees, a letter will be drafted to the Washoe 
County Human Resources Department verifying that the Library Director’s annual 
performance evaluation has been conducted in an open meeting.   
 
Previous Action: 
In November 2017, the previously approved electronic evaluation process for the Library 
Director’s 2017 performance evaluation was utilized and questions were provided to 
individuals invited to participate in the Library Director’s annual performance evaluation. 
 
On December 20, 2017, the Library Board of Trustees’ meeting agenda included the 
Library Director’s annual performance evaluation, however following public comment, 
the performance evaluation was removed from the agenda pending receipt of additional 
information to May 2018. 
 
Recommendation and Suggested Motion:  Accept the Library Director’s annual 
performance evaluation results and approve direction to the Library Director regarding 
future performance.    

 



ITEM 4a



ITEM 4a



ITEM 4a



ITEM 4a



ITEM 4a



ITEM 4a



ITEM 4a



ITEM 4a



ITEM 4a



ITEM 4a



ITEM 4a



ITEM 4a



ITEM 4a



ITEM 4a



Goals and Accomplishments of the Library Director 2016-18 

• Established Funding for Maker Services ($30,000 annually)
• Increased Focus on Youth Services

→ Child Fine Free Card
→ Washoe County School District Children can opt-in to get a library 

card upon enrollment
→ Launched I'm Ready for K! State-sponsored program to ensure 

children are school ready
→ Launched 1,000 Books Before Kindergarten 
→ Launched Give the Gift of Reading Fundraiser ($30,000 raised for 

Children's books in the first year)
• Implemented RFID system at the library/Automated Materials Handlers

to be installed 2018
• Launched Chromebook Project (10 computer Chromebook lab at every

branch)
• Launched Discover and Go program (Library patrons can get free

access to Northern Nevada and Northern California Museums with their
library card)

• Passed 2018-2021 Technology plan
• Passed 2018-2020 Strategic Plan
• Elected to Board of Directors for United Way of Northern Nevada and

the Sierras
• Elected as Nevada Library Association Vice President/President-Elect

for 2018-2019
• Team Member TEDXUNR
• WCLS Nominated for IMLS National Medal for Libraries (Rep. Amodei)

for 2016

ITEM 4a



The Vision for the Washoe County Library System

Immediate History: The Recession Years 

Washoe County Library System has a long and storied reputation in Northern Nevada. Reno Public 

Library was the first library in the state starting in a historic Carnegie Library. Leadership in the past 

30 years by two Library Directors Martha Gould and Nancy Cummings has made the library what it 

is today. There is a separate property tax that allows the library additional funding on top of what the 

county provides. There are three new libraries built in the last 15 years that are award-winning. 

However, in 2011 Washoe County Library System suffered a 40% budget cut as a result of the 

recession. Over the next five years staffing levels, hours, and expenditures were severely reduced. 

Many staff reductions happened through attrition and not through a moderated plan. Washoe County 

Library System was left without a clear direction moving forward as a result. The public perception of 

the library was that it was on the way out. Budget cuts and the possible closure of the partnership 

libraries (Duncan-Traner, Verdi, and Gerlach) had been etched into the community's brain. Much of 

the publicity and commentary from the public has been centered on those issues. When I was hired 

in December of 2015, Washoe County Library System was a library in crisis.  

Moving Forward: Strategic Plan/Developing the Vision 

From my perspective, there are two main goals for a library. One is to be a resource for the 

community. Find the most pressing issue and ensure the library is providing resources to solve it. 

The Public Library Association developed a program called Planning for Results to address 

community issues. It allows the library to reallocate resources to the most pressing needs through a 

strategic planning process. That process involves community members and library staff to develop a 

strategic plan. Second, the library must be as efficient as possible and a good steward of tax dollars. 

This requires a new library director to be an efficiency expert and make changes to improve 

operations. The end result is a library that best serves the community where it is most needed.  

Washoe County Library System currently had a strategic plan that is out of date and did not address 

the most pressing issues for the library. My first six months as library director was spent meeting with 

library staff and community members about the most pressing needs. The conclusion was three 

areas: Early Literacy Services, Makerspace Services, and Renovation of Library Facilities. 

Operationally, there also needed to be a better vision for the community moving forward with all 

library staff. As a result, the Library Board of Trustees approved four In-Service Days for 2016. 

ITEM 4a



There were services days in May, August, December, and February. The point of these training days 

was to get feedback from staff, provide training for staff, and communicate the vision moving 

forward. In May 2016, we discussed the library's role in the community. We talked about the lost role 

as a result of the Great Recession and how to regain our role. At that meeting, I presented to the 

library staff the concepts of Early Literacy, Makerspace, and Renovations as our three major 

objectives. This was to replace the current strategic plan until we developed a new one.  

Beginning in August of 2017, I developed plans for a new Strategic Plan. This involved using the 

Planning for Results method which was approved by the Library Board of Trustees. I tasked our 

Leadership Team to find three community stakeholders and interview them. Our goal is to find what 

the community needs are and how the library can address those needs. Ultimately, we had over 50 

interviews with stakeholders throughout Washoe County. This resulted in the passage of our 

Strategic Plan in December of 2017, of which, we are a quarter of the way through now.  

Since December of 2017, I began One on One meetings with Library Branch Managers and Library 

Division heads. My goal was to ensure strategic initiatives were being met, receive input on issues 

with the branch I could help resolve and help with better communication with ongoing projects. We 

met from January to April 2018. We are currently taking a pause until Summer Reading has ended 

and will resume meetings in September.  

When I began as Washoe County Library System, the majority of news stories and perceptions were 

about the 2011 budget cuts and library closures. Any news coverage was prefaced with our difficult 

history that hurts our support going forward. As you can see in our board reports, we now regularly 

get media coverage from all tv and radio outlets that tell a positive story about our accomplishments 

and goals. This has resulted in successful fundraisers, county support, and community support. With 

a new strategic plan passed based on stakeholder input, we can now tell a new story of the Washoe 

County Library System. We are thriving.  

Renovations 

In April 2016, Deputy District Attorney Dania Reid contacted me about a large trust that was to give 

to the library. The Tacchino Trust is a trust established by David Tacchino. It is a $6 million trust, of 

which, 15% ($900,000) was to be given to the library. Considering this opportunity was provided just 

as our three initiatives were rolled out, it was an excellent opportunity to use it to renovate library 

branches in the worst shape. Downtown Reno, Sparks, and Northwest Libraries were chosen since 

ITEM 4a



they are stand alone, we own the property, and they were in the most disrepair. We did not select 

North Valleys or Sierra View since they are in malls and are the responsibility of the landlord for 

upkeep according to the MOUs. In negotiating with the Trustees of the Tacchino Trust, they have 

very specific requirements. If we were to renovate libraries, the trust could not be used for basic 

maintenance. The trust could only be used for children's books or furniture, fixtures, and equipment. 

We also needed to spend these funds within five years. This agreement was approved at the 

November 2016 Library Board of Trustees meeting. The Library has until 2021 to expend these 

funds. 

Once the funds were secured, we submitted a Capital Improvement Projects request to match the 

Tacchino funds. The funds could only be activated if the county matched some of those funds. With 

the flooding in the winter and spring of 2017, we were not optimistic about our chances. We planned 

to fundraise or grant-write the majority of the costs needed and hoped that county would fund some 

of the projects. The good news for us came in April when the CIP and County Budget Office agreed 

to provide support for the project. They scheduled Downtown Reno Library to be completed in FY 

17-18 with Sparks and Northwest to be funded FY 18-19. The renovations have been pushed back 

with Downtown Reno Library scheduled for renovation November 2018 and Sparks/Northwest 

Libraries scheduled for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. The Downtown Reno Library auditorium was 

renovated in January 2018 in time for the Livestream for the TEDXUNR in January 2018.  

ITEM 4a



ITEM 4b 

TO: Washoe County Library Board 

FROM:  Dave Solaro, Assistant County Manager 

RE: Washoe County Staff Report Regarding Radon Tests Results and Current 
Mitigation Effort at the Downtown Reno Library 

DATE: May 16, 2018 

Background:  In January 2018, Washoe County began testing County facilities for radon 
using small kits set out for 3 days, then sent to the laboratory for testing.  During this 
process, the test results for the Downtown Reno Library showed elevated levels of radon 
prompting further testing.   

During the Library Board of Trustees Meeting on April 18, 2018, Washoe County 
Assistant Manager Dave Solaro and Library Director Jeff Scott informed the Library Board 
of Trustees, staff and public present that the test results indicated elevated levels of 
radon in the Downtown Reno Library.  They stated that Washoe County was in the 
process of running the HVAC system 24/7 and would test again after one week to 
determine whether this lowered radon levels in the building. 

Subsequent testing confirmed that constant running of the HVAC system decreased 
levels of radon throughout the Downtown Reno Library building.   

Assistant County Manager Dave Solaro will provide an update to the Library Board of 
Trustees, staff and public regarding the test results and current mitigation effort.    

Recommendation and Suggested Motion:  This agenda item is informational and does 
not require any action. 



Start Test 4:10pm, 4/20/18 4:15pm, 4/23/18 4:15pm, 4/24/18 4:10pm, 4/24/18 4:20pm, 4/25/18 4:20pm, 4/25/18 4:10pm, 4/23/18 4:50pm, 4/20/18
Stop Test 12:41pm, 4/23/18 4:17pm, 4/24/18 4:07p, 4/25/18 4:10pm, 4/25/18 4:18p, 4/26/18 4:05pm, 4/26/18 4:12pm, 4/24/18 12:50pm, 4/23/18

Library Basement  
Base Stairs

Library Basement  
IT Room

Library Basement 
Reference Desk

Library Level 
Three Admin

Library Sub-
basement

Library Level 
Three Break 

Room
Library  Level Two 
Circulation Office

Library Level Two 
Staff Room

Location G Location A Location C Location L Location H Location K Location J Location I
Average pCi/L 4.9 23.2 3.3 3 15.6 3.3 2.9 3.5
Maximimum 9.8 29.4 6.6 5.1 41.3 6.2 5.8 8.5
Minimum 0.6 16.3 1.2 0.9 5.7 1.1 0.4 0.6

2/20-3/1 Testing (Avg) 32.3 55.6 20 13 41.1 16.1 15.1 17.2

Difference in Avg pCi/L (Feb-Apr) 27.4 32.4 16.7 10 25.5 12.8 12.2 13.7
Change by percentage 85% 58% 84% 77% 62% 80% 81% 80%

Continous Radon Testing Results - Downtown Library (post 24/7 HVAC operation)

ITEM 4b



ITEM 4b



ITEM 6a 
Sparks Library May 2017-2018 Annual Highlights 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
• YOUNG READERS

o Summer Reading Program featured crafts, story times, toddler times, and three well received
programs: Amazing little old man and the search for the bluebird of happiness, Biggest little
bug adventure, and Mad science; fire and ice.  We so appreciate the support of the Friends of
Washoe County Library for these exciting and highly desirable community programs.

o Winter reading program featured coding camp for kids, a Harry Potter party celebrating the
20th anniversary of the release of the first book, and a gift wrapping party.

o WCLS Cards to school students: Sparks provided tours to outside groups (Boys and Girls Club,
City of Sparks various summer and break camp program), as well as multiple elementary
schools.  The partnership with the school district and Infinite Campus made issuing cards
efficient and fast, and we were able to get cards into the hands of children.

• S.T.E.A.M. Services
o A variety of staff are participating in S.T.E.A.M. programs.  This has increased from just a few

children to now 15-20 kids and parents participating on a regular basis.  Favorites include 3D
drawing, gumdrop bridges, and building catapults.

Meeting room 

Users are frequent and diverse.  In addition to programs and library meetings, listed are examples of 
meeting room users during the past year. 

Mercury Momentum (501c3 organization) 
Northern Nevada Beekeepers Association 
Northern Nevada Gaming Guild 
Health Astrology 
University of North Texas MLIS informational 
program 
Reno Rhinos 
Washoe County School District (various planning 
groups) 
Sierra Nevada Decorative Artists 
Nevada Newcomer’s  

Alpha Delta Kappa Iota 
Dream Team 
Well-Armed Woman 
Wooster High School Baseball sign-ups 
WorldWide Group 
Rockwell Development 
Washoe Area Gaming Enclave 
Starbucks 
Northern Nevada Mothers of Twins group 
Nevada State Treasurer’s Office 



ITEM 6a 
Community Partnerships/Outreach 

• We continue to partner with Paws 2 Read for monthly sessions.
• 39N Marketplace: WCLS has a booth at the outdoor marketplace Thursdays during the summer

months.  While we only attend one time a month, we average interacting with approximately 90
individuals each time.  Many of these result in issuing or replacing library cards, as well as promoting
databases and services offered by the library.

• Sparks visited Rita Cannan, Florence Drake, Greenbrae, and Lincoln Park Elementary schools as well
as Mater Academy of Northern Nevada and Excel Christian School.

• Sparks attended Washoe County School District Pre-K family night at both Hug High School and
Sparks High School

• University of Nevada Cooperative Extension “Little books, little cooks” program
• Great Basin Young Chautauqua programs
• Author Robin Holabird
• Spellbinders
• University of Nevada, Reno digital scanning—helping people preserve historical photos
• Presentations in schools on searching, evaluating and the ethical use of information
• City of Sparks “PumpkinPalooza” outreach in Victorian Square

Staffing/Support: 

• RFID: Brian Garner and Sue Hobbs handled this project at Sparks.  By careful documentation,
instruction, and timelines, Sparks was able to accomplish the entire project using existing staff,
during open hours while prioritizing serving the public, and with no overtime hours that ultimately
impact the WCLS budget.  This is quite an accomplishment in a busy branch with a large collection,
and Brian and Sue are to be commended on their project management.

• June and July saw 5 staff retire.  Hiring and teambuilding continues to be a priority.
• Rachel Winters’ request to voluntary demote into a full time Library Assistant I position at Sparks was

accepted.  The resulting vacant part time position was transferred to Incline Village.
• One staff member transferred to Incline Village, and another resigned to accept a branch manager

position in California
• The vacant LAIII position is in recruitment through HR.

Facility: 
• Had some significant roof leaks, patched for now, and awaiting for a complete re-roof.
• Public restrooms are in process of remodel to be ADA compliant.
• Increased visibility and footprint of Maker Space
• Created a permanent “Memory Makerspace” alongside idea boxes.



ITEM 6b 

TO: Washoe County Library Board 

FROM: Jeff Scott, Library Director 

RE: Tacchino Trust Expenditure Update 

DATE:  May 16, 2018 

Background:  The Library Board of Trustees receives regular monthly updates regarding 
the status of expenditures from the Tacchino Trust bequeathment to the Washoe 
County Library System.   

For the month of April 2018, a total of $4,151.91 was spent on furniture/fixtures for the 
Downtown Reno Library.  

To date, Tacchino Trust funds spent for remodel total $59,540.98. 

Recommendation and Suggested Motion:  This agenda item is informational and does 
not require any action. 



FYI



FYI



LBOT Meeting Jeff Scott’s PA    

For the record: Julie Machado, Managing Librarian, Spanish Springs Library. 

I am here to speak on behalf of front line Library staff members, who often feel they don’t have a voice. 
To help them voice their thoughts and feelings. 

I am encouraging you to take into consideration the comments from the original Performance Appraisal 
data in the Library Board packet. Other than the comments from the library board, I am to understand 
that only Mr. Scott’s Core Team members and library managers were invited to give input. 

Library Managers requested input from their staff and comments came from front line employees. Now 
some people might believe that negative comments from a few people, especially when they come in a 
block, come from disgruntled employees, and they would tend to disregard them. However, these 
comments come through well-educated high-ranking staff who shared input from their staff given in 
good faith.        I realize this is a contentious area. Some of these comments reflect a negative work 
environment caused by Mr. Scott. By his decisions, his communication style, and his side-stepping 
requests from employees that he previously determined would be moved. His actions are what caused 
staff, and are still causing staff, to be fearful of retaliation. 

I am hoping to convince you that these comments should not be discounted, and should be considered 
in Jeff Scott’s annual evaluation, and should be regarded with the weight they deserve, because they 
feel his actions and decisions have created a pervasive hostile working environment. 

My second point is that Mr. Scott has different presentation styles. He presents differently to you than 
to others. Although you might see his optimistic point of view, others have called his style bullying and 
demeaning. 

I hope you take these written and verbal comments into your deliberation and consideration. 

Thank you. 



  ADDENDUM A 

 
 
 
I am one of many from the Library, who has filed grievances involving Dir Scott. His conduct of bullying and 
retaliatory treatment of staff has poisoned our department and continues to foster the hostile work environment 
that has resulted. 
  
These bullying and impulsive actions seem to suggest that Dir Scott is not concerned with how he performs, but 
rather how he’s perceived as performing.  He has taken full advantage of the fact that he has gained the trust of 
members in the community and those who may oversee his performance, then paved paths for opportunities to 
present gold star results, that lack full disclosure. 
 
Shortly after Dir Scott joined our library, December 2015, he sent emails to all staff, inviting participation from 
everyone, regarding his practices. In December 2016, I wrote a letter to him expressing some of my concerns. This 
letter was in no way outside the bounds of the above mentioned emails, yet I and my supervisor were told we 
were going to be disciplined for this. From that point forward, Dir Scott’s behavior toward me became increasingly 
hostile. When he would see me, he would deliberately avoid eye contact, roll his eyes, followed by an expression I 
would describe as disdainful. While this behavior was immediately obvious to me, it soon became evident to 
coworkers, as more and more began to question what they had observed, asking why he would be looking at me in 
that manner. They would even warn me to stay clear of an area where he was present. 
 
June of 2017, Dir Scott announced he would be reassigning several staff under the guise of “strengthening the 
system”, yet he never discussed the strategy behind this action with those who would be moved or their 
supervisors.   I was one of them, and I will go to my grave knowing that this was a retaliatory gesture for having 
written that letter. 
 
Additionally, in December of 2016, I had filed for intermittent FMLA status. Section 825.101 of this law states: “The 
Act is intended to balance the demands of the workplace with the needs of families” 
825.204 d) states: “An employer may not transfer the employee to an alternative position in order to discourage 
the employee from taking leave or otherwise work a hardship on the employee. For example ....... an employee 
working in the headquarters facility may not be reassigned to a branch a significant distance away from the 
employee's normal job location.” 
I live two miles from the Reno branch. He moved me in spite of many attempts to persuade him otherwise. The 
move to the Spanish Springs branch resulted in a commute that took as long as an hour, in addition to many other 
hardships with regard to my FMLA status. 
  
After my reassignment to Spanish Springs, I went to Reno to work for one day - November 6, 2017.  When Director 
Scott saw me there, he was very obviously very angry, and instructed the branch manager to send me back to the 
Spanish Springs branch immediately, and that he wanted to be present when she informed me of this.  He also told 
her he was charging her with insubordination for “transferring” me back to Reno. Later that day, he went around 
to staff at Reno and told them that if I’m ever seen on the premises, they are to notify him immediately.  He said 
nothing to me directly, but when I learned of this from several coworkers, I felt threatened and frightened.   
 



  ADDENDUM A 

At the recommendation of one of the Assistant Washoe County Mangers, Dir Scott moved me to the Sierra View 
branch, but in doing so, had to move the LA III from there to Spanish Springs.  Through conversations with her, I 
learned that he discussed details of my FMLA status with her in order to persuade her that she would be helping 
me by going to SS.  Discussing anything about one’s FMLA status is a violation of the law, but Dir Scott seems to 
think some laws do not apply to him.   
 
Our managers and supervisors are where we look for behavior that is both professional and ethical.  Director Scott 
has demonstrated neither.  I am told that employee relations are handled by Washoe County Human Resources 
and that Library Trustees are responsible for overseeing how our Director performs.   It’s difficult to understand 
how a director’s relationships with his or her employees fall into a category other than performance. 
 
Respectfully, 
Mary Lohnes LA III  



From: Gaston, Tamara
To: Gaston, Tamara
Subject: FW: Newsletter + Libby success story! FW: Library News & Events: May 2018
Date: Monday, June 11, 2018 11:04:27 AM

From: Andrews, John 
Sent: Saturday, May 05, 2018 9:57 AM
To: Tavener, Andrea; Weinert, Beate; Stears, Debi D; Scott, Jeff; Dalusung, Joan
Subject: Newsletter + Libby success story! FW: Library News & Events: May 2018

From: Amber Joiner [mailto:amberjoyjoiner@gmail.com] 
Sent: Friday, May 04, 2018 4:46 PM
To: Washoe County Libraries
Subject: Re: Library News & Events: May 2018

THANK YOU! 
In case you wonder if people read your newsletters, yes we do, and we appreciate all
the info!

I was so happy to get this e-mail about Libby today - just in time! My daughter just
came home from school extremely sad that she had finished her book at school and
didn't have the next one in the series for the weekend. I had ordered it on Abebooks
used, but I had to break the news to her that it hadn't even shipped yet. She is
ADDICTED to the Land of Stories series. As she was moping around,  I opened your
newsletter! In less than 5 minutes we had downloaded Libby on our ancient iPad and
she was reading Worlds Collide - the last book in the series. You just made her
weekend!! I have used Overdrive before for audio books on long drives, but I hadn't
thought about it having digital books for her. I don't think I'll have to order any more
books for a while - a whole new world opened up with that app for us! Also it says it
works with Kindles? Soooo cool - will have to try that too. 

Also love seeing all your programs. Fun summer ahead!

Thanks again,
Amber

Amber Joiner
775-338-6733 (c)

On Fri, May 4, 2018 at 4:00 PM, Washoe County Library <noreply@libraryaware.com>
wrote:

View Online

Washoe County Library News & Events: May 2018 

ADDENDUM B

mailto:/O=WASHOECOUNTY/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=TGASTON
mailto:TGaston@washoecounty.us
mailto:noreply@libraryaware.com
http://www.libraryaware.com/1687/Posts/View/b184cddb-e553-4140-bbfd-95b260bda547?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4V6?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987


 

 

 

Candidate Forums 
 
Join us for one of three Speak Youth To Power Candidate Forums in
May in the Downtown Reno Library Auditorium. While these events are
youth-centered, all members of the public are encouraged to attend.
These are not debates, but forums for candidates to address issues.
Audience members will also have the opportunity to ask questions.

 
All programs begin at 6 pm at the Downtown Reno Library.
These non-partisan forums are sponsored by the Reno News &
Review, This is Reno, the Holland Project, KWNK, and Washoe

County Library System, and are open to all candidates.
·       Thursday, May 3: Washoe County Commission
·       Thursday, May 10: Reno City Council
·       Thursday, May 31: Mayor of Reno

Meet Libby!
 
Have you met Libby yet? This new app from OverDrive is the
newest and easiest way to discover, check out, and enjoy ebooks
and audiobooks from the library on your phone or tablet.
 
Get started with your library card or phone number at
meet.libbyapp.com
 

2018 Summer Reading Program:
Libraries Rock!
June 1 - August 30

Kids and teens can attend rockin' events, track their reading ,and earn
free books all summer long. 
 

http://4la.co/1JN4V7?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4V7?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987


Sign up beginning May 15 at washoecountylibrary.us/summerreading.
 
 

May Library Closures
 
Thursday, May 17: Staff Training. All Washoe County Libraries
scheduled to be open will open at 2 pm.
 
Monday, May 28. Memorial Day.
The North Valleys Library will also be closed Tuesday, May 29.
 

 

 

Older Americans Month
Engage at Every Age: join us for several special
programs for Older Americans Month all month long.

May Computer Café
Bring your computer questions and be ready to learn!

Tuesdays & Thursdays in May, 1:30 - 3:30 pm
Senior Center Library

 
Affordable Senior Housing Options

Presented by George Graham,
City of Sparks Housing Specialist

Tuesday, May 8, 10:30 - 11:30 am
Sparks Library

 
Senior Transportation Options

Presented by Regional Transportation Commission
Tuesday, May 8, 5:30 - 6:30 pm

Spanish Springs Library
 

Healthy Habits for a Healthier You
Presented by Denise Hund, Alzheimer's Association

Wednesday, May 9, 3:30 - 5:00 pm

Affordable Senior Housing Discussion
Engage in a discussion on the need for

affordable senior housing in our
community featuring local experts.

Tuesday, May 15, 11 am - noon
North Valleys Library

 
Alzheimer's: Know the 10 Warning Signs

Learn the basics of early detection. Presented by
Anakaren Lamas, Alzheimer's Association

Wednesday, May 16, 4 - 5:30 pm
Sierra View Library

 
Using the Internet for Lifelong Learning

Learn to use popular websites and apps.
You decide the topic and learn at your own

pace. Limited computers are available;
feel free to bring your own device.

Thursday, May 17, 3 - 4:30 pm

http://4la.co/1JN4V8?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4V9?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VA?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VB?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VC?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VD?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VE?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VF?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VG?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987


Sierra View Library
 

Northwest Reno Library
 

 

Nevada Reads: The Opioid Crisis
 
Join us for book discussions and community panels on the crisis of opioid
addiction. Offered in conjunction with Nevada Humanities, Nevada Reads
is a statewide conversational book club reading Marlena: A Novel by Julie
Buntin and Dreamland: A True Tale of America's Opiate Epidemic by Sam
Quinones.
 
Join Together Northern Nevada: Opioid Presentation
Tuesday, May 8, 1 pm, Downtown Reno Library
 
Washoe Talks: Opioid Epidemic Panel
Thursday, May 10, 6:30 pm, Downtown Reno Library
 
Book Discussion featuring Nevada Reads Titles
Tuesday, May 22, 4 pm, Spanish Springs Library
 

The Hot August Nights Story 
Presented by Historic Reno Preservation Society
With David Hansen, Emeritus Director of Hot August Nights
 
On the night of August 1, 1986, the Reno-Sparks Convention Center was
bursting at the seams with hundreds of revelers at a first-time event with
a magnitude yet to be realized. The weather was hot, the month was
August, and the memories flooded back and so did the desire for more!
·       Wednesday, May 16, 5:30 pm, Northwest Reno Library

 

 

Spring Family Estate Planning Series
Presented by the Community Foundation of Western Nevada
·       May 2: Power of Attorney, Health Care Directives, DNRs, and Ethical

Wills
·       May 9: Protecting Digital Assets / Customize Your Planned Giving
·       May 16: Overview of Medicaid and Health Insurance, Wills Planning

Guide
Wednesdays, March 28 to May 16

10:30 am to noon   - or -   1:30 to 3 pm
Sierra View Library

 
For reservations or questions, please contact the Community Foundation of
Western Nevada at 775-333-5499.

 

 

http://4la.co/1JN4VJ?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VJ?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VH?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VK?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VM?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987


Brüka Theatre for Children
Presented by Pioneer Center Youth Programs and the Friends of Washoe
County Library
 
An original modern adaptation of the classic Grimm’s tale of "The Frog
Prince.” 
·       Wednesday, May 16, 4 pm, Incline Village Library
·       Wednesday, May 23, 5 pm, Northwest Reno Library
·       Wednesday, June 6, 1:15 pm, Verdi Community Library

  

Petroglyph - the Evolution of Music
Presented by Pioneer Center Youth Programs and the Friends of Washoe
County Library.
 
Pete Fairley of MeadowRock Percussion joins David Blonski of Timeless
Productions in this exploration of music from multiple cultures and
historical eras.
·       Saturday, May 19, 11 am, South Valleys Library
·       Sunday, June 3, 2 pm, Spanish Springs Library
·       Sunday, June 10, 1 pm, Downtown Reno Library

 

Northern Nevada Literacy Council Family
Reading Program
 
Learn techniques to improve your child’s reading while doing fun family
activities. You’ll bring home lots of new ideas and free books! 
 
Targeted toward parents and children birth through 3rd grade.
Reservations are required.
·       Through May 6 at the Spanish Springs Library.
·       For dates, times and registration information, call the Spanish

Springs Library or visit www.washoecountylibrary.us/nnlc.
  

Story Times & Early Literacy Programs

Story Times, Toddler Times, and other early literacy programs like
Paws 2 Read are offered weekly at most library branches.
 
View the complete Story Time schedule or browse the online
calendar of events.
 

http://4la.co/1JN4VN?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VN?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VP?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VQ?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VR?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VR?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VR?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VS?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VS?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VR?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VT?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VT?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VV?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VV?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987


 

 

 

 
About the Friends of Washoe County Library
 
May Book Sale @ Reno Town Mall
4001 S. Virginia Street next to the Sierra View Library
 
See washoelibraryfriends.org for more details.
 
The Friends of Washoe County Library is a member-supported 501(c)(3) Nevada non-profit organization
dedicated to advocating, fundraising, and providing support for Washoe County Library System. Your tax-
deductible donation to the FWCL Endowment Fund will provide needed additional funding to our libraries for
generations to come. To join, donate, or for more information, please visit
www.washoelibraryfriends.org or call 775-324-5522.
 

 

Sign up for our newsletters to receive book
reviews and library information right to your inbox!

Visit www.washoecountylibrary.us/newsletters.

Locations & Hours | Digital Library | Calendar of Events | Catalog Search
Washoe County Library System

301 S Center St, Reno, NV 89501
www.washoecountylibrary.us - 775-327-8300

Manage Subscriptions or Unsubscribe | Subscribe via RSS or ATOM Feeds | View Online

If you are having trouble unsubscribing from this email, please contact: 
Washoe County Library at (775) 327-8300, 301 South Center Street Reno, Nevada 89501 

library@washoecounty.us
 

https://maps.google.com/?q=4001+S.+Virginia+Street&entry=gmail&source=g
http://washoelibraryfriends.org/
http://4la.co/1JN4VW?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VX?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VY?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4VZ?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4W0?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4W1?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4W2?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
https://maps.google.com/?q=301+S+Center+St,++Reno,+NV+89501&entry=gmail&source=g
http://4la.co/1JN4V6?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://4la.co/1JN4V6?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
http://www.libraryaware.com/1687/Subscribers/ManageSubscription?pid=b184cddb-e553-4140-bbfd-95b260bda547&sid=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987&key=xz7y7dfpqxfae91sttco97nb3637wmtbhpzmuzeo3ze4w113ugxa1aktjr1b8x1ct1nia4x95dckfcydexwd1jcox94hbgcp5m3sazy4ahfxipqk6f4ic6gyn3bd3cju576i8kpikr1dtu441o9d5es6p9narnpqai6i8557db6wrgmn7ryazw78drfo5qzau8qsukxa9qgqhie1x33nr5g8da5xa5xd8p9f68zexqpr45xadym363bxj73bs136
http://www.libraryaware.com/Feeds/Index/87f1d318-7dd6-46b9-a9c0-51b1aa4e0c7f
http://www.libraryaware.com/1687/Posts/View/b184cddb-e553-4140-bbfd-95b260bda547?SID=aa9f6f3c-1287-4347-853c-f336aec25987
https://maps.google.com/?q=301+South+Center+Street+Reno,+Nevada+89501&entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:library@washoecounty.us

	0-Agenda
	3a-Agenda Item
	4a1-Agenda Item
	TO:  Washoe County Library Board
	FROM:  Washoe County Staff Report

	4a2-Agenda Item
	4a3-Agenda Item
	4b-Agenda Item
	TO:  Washoe County Library Board
	FROM:  Dave Solaro, Assistant County Manager

	6a-Agenda Item
	6b-Agenda Item
	TO:  Washoe County Library Board
	FROM: Jeff Scott, Library Director

	FYI
	Downtown Library Re-test results.pdf
	Sheet1


